
Purchasing and Contracting Department, Maloof Administration Building ▪ 1300 Commerce Drive, 2nd Floor ▪ Decatur, Georgia 30030 ▪ 404-
371-7051 Office ▪ 404-371-7006 Fax

Website: www.dekalbcountyga.gov

March 11, 2019 

TO: All Bidders under ITB No. 19-101072, ROAD WIDENING, SIDEWALKS, BIKE 
LANES (ROCKBRIDGE ROAD - ALLGOOD TO ROWLAND ROAD)             

FROM: Department of Purchasing and Contracting, DeKalb County, Georgia 

ADDENDUM NO. # 1 

Invitation to Bid (ITB) No.: 19-101072, ROAD WIDENING, SIDEWALKS, BIKE LANES 
(ROCKBRIDGE ROAD - ALLGOOD TO ROWLAND ROAD), is hereby amended as follows: 

1. We have received questions pertaining to this Invitation to Bid.  The questions and their
resulting answers appear below:

A. Question:  Who pays for the testing of concrete or general testing?  Is it the County or the
Contractor?

Answer:. The County will be responsible for the testing of the concrete and asphalt 
during the project.  Please note that NPDES monitoring and testing is the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

B. Question: Any geotechnical exploration or do you have any information on the presence of
rock within the project limit?

Answer:. No geotechnical exploration/reports were performed during the 
preconstruction phase of this project.  

C. Question: Would you require clearing of all trees within the construction easements?

Answer:. The contractor is not required to clear all of the trees within the temporary 
easements.   

D. Question: Does the DBE requirement for 0008121 need to include the W&S items? .

Answer:  Yes, the DBE requirement includes the water and sewer items. 
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E. Question: Since the completion date for this project is more than 366 calendar days, will
DeKalb County include the GDOT Special Provision Specification 109 for the Liquid Index
Price Adjustment?

Answer:  The Asphalt Indexing does not apply to this project. 

F. Question: What is the budget for this project?

Answer:  Cost estimates are not made available for projects funded through the 
Georgia Department of Transportation. 

G. Question:  We have been unable to find on the plans where it is shown which water lines are to
be filled with flowable fill.  Can the plans be revised to call out which water lines are to be
filled with flowable fill?

Answer: The plans will not be revised. The existing 6” and 8” line from sta 102+33 to 
sta 117+25 will need to be abandoned and grout filled.  Additionally, any lines off the 
lines noted above shall be grout filled to the plug/cap connections as shown on the 
drawings. 

H. Question:  There are several bid items that are associated with one PI and not the other. Due to
PI# 0008121 and PI# 0012789 both having a 14% DBE goal, can the following bid items be
added to both PI’s in order for the Contractor to spread the money across both PI’s?

a. Grassing items, erosion control items, and traffic control

Answer:  No, the DBE goals need to be based on the items for each PI number

(0008121 and 0012789).

I. Question:  Will the basis of award for this project be low bidder for the Grand Total Bid?
(Grand Total Bid = Total Bid PI 008121 + Total Bid PI 0012789 + Total Bid Water & Sewer)

Answer:  Add the following to Bid Document Page 13 Under Award of Contract: The 
low bid will be determined based on the sum of the grand total bid for PI0008121, 
PI0012789 and Water & Sewer items. 

J. Question:  It appears the water & sewer bid items are included with PI# 0008121. Does the
DBE goal of 14% for PI# 0008121 include the water & sewer items?

Answer:  See response to question “D”. 
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K. Question:  Will the GDOT Asphalt Index apply to this project due to the completion date
being greater than 1 year?

Answer:  See response to question “E”. 

L. Question:  According to one of our water subs there was a new water main installed recently
from Memorial Drive to N. Deshon. That project skipped over Pine Lake because of this
Rockbridge Road project. There are new stub outs on each end of this project that are not
reflected on the plans. Should connections to this new water main be incorporated into this
project?

Answer:  Yes.  DeKalb County has recently installed a new 8”waterline on each end of 
the project.  Please refer to the as-builts attached to this addendum.  The plugs on the end of the 
8” line at each end of the project reflect the approximate location of where the new tie-in is 
located.  

M. Question:  Page 22 of the bid documents states “If the Bidder’s Unit Price exceeds one page in
length it should be completed in an excel format, typewritten, printed out and attached
hereto.  Handwritten Unit Prices exceeding one page in length may not be accepted and may
result in the proposed Bid being deemed non-responsive.” Please clarify what this statement
means. Can the bidder print out the bid form and handwrite the unit prices in the spaces
provided? If the County wants an excel bid form filled out please provide one to the bidders.

Answer:  Please provide either typewritten or written legibly, printed out and inserted 
in a separate sealed envelope. 

N. Question:  There are 3 Business Signs located on parcels 6 & 7 that will need to be removed.
Will these signs be removed prior to construction? If not, what responsibility does the
Contractor have for relocating these signs?

Answer:  No signs are being removed on parcel 7.  The signs on parcel 6 shall be 
removed as a part of the construction contract. 

O. Question:  There will be existing parking lot pavement removed inside the easements shown
on parcels 6 & 7. How will the County pay for the replacement of this pavement once impacted
by construction?

Answer:  Quantities have been provided for the replacement of the parking lot as 
shown on the plans.  Repair work (if applicable) on this parking lot for parcel 6 and 7 
will paid for by the unit costs established under the contract and must be approved by 
the engineer to be considered for payment. 
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P. Question:  There is an existing light pole located at approximate sta. 110+75 RT that will need
to be removed. Will this light pole be removed prior to construction? If not, what responsibility
does the Contractor have for relocating this light pole?

Answer:  This light pole will be relocated by Georgia Power as a part of their utility 
relocations.  Georgia Power intends to replace the lighting along the corridor as a part 
of their relocation plan. 

Q. Question:  Where does the Type 2 pull box go on this project? It is listed on the LOM on page
27-0002, but I do not see it on the plans.

Answer:  Type 2 pull box is not required for this signal.  A revised sheet 27-0002 
updating the list of materials is attached to this addendum. 

R. Question:  Since there is one schedule of values for each PI (Two in total), how would like the
county to split the lump sum items such as traffic control and grading complete since they are
repeated in both?

Answer:  Grading complete is the only lump sum quantity on both PI numbers.  Please 
base your grading complete lump sum costs on the roadway items associated with the 
PI number that it is under.  Please refer to the typical sections for the extent of work 
associated with each PI number. 

S. Question:  If we are a Prime DBE/LSBE do we need to have include a subcontractor DBE
participation to meet the 14% requirements?

Answer:  No, additional DBE participation is not required, however, you must include 
your information on the DBE goal sheet if the Prime is going to meet the DBE 
requirement. 

2. It is the responsibility of each bidder to ensure that he/she is aware of all addenda issued
under this RFP. Please sign and return this addendum.  You may call Jennifer Schofield,
Procurement Agent, 404.687.4042; before the Proposals are due to confirm the number of
addenda issued.

3. All other conditions remain in full force and effect.

__________________________________ 
Jennifer Schofield 
Procurement Agent   
Department of Purchasing and Contracting 
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Date: ______________________________ 

The above Addendum #1 is hereby acknowledged: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(NAME OF BIDDER) 

________________________________________     ___________________________________ 
(Signature)                                                            (Title) 

jjs/DR 

RFP No. 19-101072, 
ROAD WIDENING, SIDEWALKS, BIKE LANES (ROCKBRIDGE ROAD - ALLGOOD TO 

ROWLAND ROAD) 
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